
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
 


 (*In order discussed) 
 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
January 4, 2018 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Rich Holmer 
 Tim Lipinski 
 Gaylord Schaap 
   
Board Members Absent: Pip Marquez de la Plata 
 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
  
Others in Attendance:     Robin Donoghue, Esq. (Meyers Nave) 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by Acting President Tim Lipinski at 6:32 p.m.   
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:33 
p.m.) 


 
(None.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:33 p.m.) 
 
Director Lipinksi reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Holmer moved to approve 
the items on the consent calendar.  Director Schaap seconded.  Motion carried 4-0, except that 
Director Robb-Wilder abstained as to Item V-A (Minutes) because she was absent at that meeting.  
The following items were approved:  
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the December 7, 2017 Board Meeting. 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment. 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence: 
 


 1







 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:34 p.m.) 
None. 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:34 p.m.)* 
     *in the order discussed 
 
V-A. (6:34 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Introduction to the FY 2018-19 Operating and 


Capital Budget and Appointment of an Ad Hoc Budget Committee.  The GM 
provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  Director Holmer volunteered to 
serve on an Ad Hoc Budget Committee.  Director Schaap also volunteered.  Director 
Lipinski moved that Director Holmer and Director Schaap be named to an Ad Hoc Budget 
Committee.  Director Robb-Wilder seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.   


 
V-B. (6:45 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Guernewood Park Resort Project.  The GM 


provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  No action was taken.   
 
V-C. (6:46 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re District surplus lands management.  .  The GM 


provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  Comments were made by Legal 
Counsel Robin Donoghue.  Further discussion ensued.  No action was taken.    


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:26 p.m.) 
 
The GM provided a report on the following items: 
 
1. Water production and sales 
2. Leaks 
3. Guerneville Rainfall 
4. River Lane property sale 
5. Monte Rio Trails Project 
6. CIP 2018 
7. In-House Construction Projects 
8. Last Year's Storm Damages 
9. Gantt Chart 
 
Brief discussion ensued. 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(7:41 p.m.) 


 
1. Director Robb-Wilder announced that she would be gone in February and would miss the 


February Board meeting. 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (7:43 p.m.) 
 
(None.)  
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (7:43 p.m.) 
 
1. Surplus lands strategy 
2. Guernewood Park Resort 


 2







 3


3. FY 2018-19 Budget 
 
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:49 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
 
 
APPROVED:  
 


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Richard Holmer        


Pip Marquez de la Plata       





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:33 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:33 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:34 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:34 p.m.)*

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:26 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS

		(7:41 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (7:43 p.m.)



		ADJOURN






              
 
 
 


www.sweetwatersprings.com 


 


BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA 


February 1, 2018, Regular Meeting  
District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 


Guerneville, California 
6:30 p.m. 


 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 
(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the January 4, 2018 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 







 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Discussion/Action re FY 2017-18 2nd Quarter Actual v. Budgeted (Operations 


and Capital) Report thru December 31, 2017 (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
B. Discussion/Action re FY 2018-19 Operating and Capital Budget  (Est. time 10 


min.) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re Guernewood Park Resort Project (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
D. Discussion/Action re USDA Bond Financing Requirements (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
IX. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA 


ADJOURN 


 2







 3


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: February 1, 2018 
  
SUBJECT: ACTUAL VS. BUDGETED (OPERATIONS AND CAPITAL) REPORT THRU 
DECEMBER 31, 2017 (50%) 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


(Discussion item only.) 
 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
(None.) 


 
 
DISCUSSION: 


 
This report presents the 2nd quarter actual revenues and expenses.  This is the 
mid-year report on our fiscal year.  It comprises 50% of the year by time and so 
we compare the revenues and expenses to that standard. 
 
Operating Budget: 
 
2Q Revenue is greater than 50% of budgeted amount.  
 
Water Sales, the largest revenue line item, came in at 3.5% ($82,344) ahead of 
the 50% schedule and continue to be on track to exceed budgeted amounts even 
considering seasonal fluctuations.  At the end of the 1Q we had sold 6.3% more 
water than last year.  As of the end of the 2Q, we have sold 7.5% more water 
than last year during the same period.    
 
During the 2Q the District received FEMA proceeds in the sum of $30,804 for 
flood-related expenses incurred last fiscal year. 
 
Overall revenues are 4.48% more than budgeted. 
 
 
2Q Expenditures are slightly lower than 50% of budgeted amount.  
 
2Q expenditures are 0.43% lower than budgeted.  There were no large 
expenses of note.   
 







Actual vs, Budgeted thru December 31, 2017 2 
February 1, 2018 


For more detail on all the budget line items, please refer to the attached Actual 
vs. Budgeted breakdown provided with your packet. 
 
Capital Budget: 
 
The 2Q Capital Budget (Table 2) is typical for mid year - we have received the 
first installment of the annual assessment from the county and made the first 
payments on our debt.  The expenses of the 2017 CIP (carryover from the 2017 
Budget) have all been paid.   Transfers to CIRF and in-house construction have 
been made as well.  We see no major differences from the approved budget.   
 
FUNDS AT THE COUNTY 
 
Table 3. Fund and Loan Balances show a comparison of the budgeted and 2nd 
Quarter balances.  Also attached is the County Fund Balances for the 2nd 
Quarter.  Table 3 includes all the funds listed in the County Fund Balances and 
also the funds at PARS. Table 3 is typical for the mid year of the fiscal year. 
 
 







FY 2017-18 
Actual


2017-18 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Ordinary Income/Expense  
Income


OPERATING REVENUE
4031 · Water Sales


4031.10· Base Rate 755,904 1,528,520 -772,616 49.45%
4031.11· Current Charges 377,798 575,358 -197,560 65.66%
4031.12· Capital Debt Reduction Charge 139,889 278,615 -138,726 50.21%
4031.1 · Other Water Sales Revenue 0 0 0 0.0%


Total 4031 · Water Sales 1,273,591 2,382,493 -1,108,902 53.46% This is a cash water sales figure.   


Total OPERATING REVENUE 1,273,591 2,382,493 -1,108,902 53.46%  


NON-OPERATING REVENUE
1700 · Interest 3,681 8,000 -4,319 46.01%  


3600 · Construction New Services 5,010 7,000 -1,990 71.58%
3601 · Construction - Service Upgrades 4,137 2,000 2,137 206.86%


4032 · Rent 44,965 98,600 -53,635 45.6%  


4227 · SCWA reimbursement 0 2,500 -2,500 0.0%


4040 · Miscellaneous Income 993 1,500 -507 66.19%  


4445 · Grant (FEMA) Proceeds 30,804 0 30,804 100.0%


In the 2Q the District received FEMA reimbursement 
for El Bonita vault seals and other flood related 
expenses incurred last year. *


Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 89,590 119,600 -30,010 74.91%


Total Income 1,363,181 2,502,093 -1,138,912 54.48%


Expense
OPERATING EXPENSES


SALARY & BENEFITS
Salary


5910 · Wages 397,415 801,720 -404,305 49.57%  


5912 · Overtime 16,937 33,200 -16,263 51.02%  


5916 · On-Call Pay 17,480 33,100 -15,620 52.81%
5918 · Extra help - Contract 18,466 37,100 -18,634 49.77%  


Total Salary 450,297 905,120 -454,823 49.75%


Benefits
5500 · Flex Spending (Flex spending monies p -2,818 0 -2,818 100.0%
5920 · Retirement net employee share 28,116 65,100 -36,984 43.19%  


5920.4 · Retirement - UL 18,060 90,000 -71,940 20.07%
An extra payment on our UL in the sum of of $54,000 
Is budgeted but not yet paid. *


5922 · Payroll Taxes - Employer Paid 5,962 15,300 -9,338 38.97%
5930 · Health/Dental/Vision/AFLAC Ins. 94,535 170,100 -75,565 55.58%  


5931 · Retiree Health 5,304 7,680 -2,376 69.06%
In the 1Q, annual contribution to CERBT ($3,000) 
made.  


5940 · Workers Comp Insurance 47,224 47,000 224 100.48%
In the 1Q, workers' compensation insurance was 
paid for the year.  


Total Benefits 196,382 395,180 -198,798 49.69%


Total SALARY & BENEFITS 646,679 1,300,300 -653,621 49.73%


SERVICES & SUPPLIES


Communications
6040-I · Internet service 971 2,350 -1,379 41.34%
6040-C · Cell Phones 2,097 4,050 -1,953 51.77%
6040-P · Pagers & Radios 289 620 -331 46.6%
6040-T · Telephones 8,898 17,000 -8,102 52.34%  


Total Communications 12,255 24,020 -11,765 51.02%


Insurances


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2017-18 Operating Budget Variances as of December 31, 2017 (50%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


 Page 1 of 4







FY 2017-18 
Actual


2017-18 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2017-18 Operating Budget Variances as of December 31, 2017 (50%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


6101 · Gen. Liability 36,181 33,000 3,181 109.64%
(In the 1Q, paid for the year. Underbudgeted this 
year.)


Total Insurances 36,181 33,000 3,181 109.64%


Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles
6140 · Vehicle Maintenance 6,864 12,500 -5,636 54.91%  


6151 · Office Maintenance 2,484 6,400 -3,916 38.81%  


Total Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles 9,348 18,900 -9,552 49.46%


Maint/Repair - Facilities
6085 · Janitorial Services 3,413 8,800 -5,387 38.78%
6100 · SCADA system 3,201 5,000 -1,799 64.01%  


6180 · Distribution System Repairs 15,616 50,000 -34,384 31.23%   
6235 · Treatment Sys/Well Repairs 12,045 45,000 -32,955 26.77%  


6143 · Generator Maintenance 565 3,200 -2,635 17.66%
Total Maint/Repair - Facilities 34,840 112,000 -77,160 31.11%


Miscellaneous Expenses
6280 · Memberships 7,084 10,800 -3,716 65.59%  


6303 · Claims 0 1,500 -1,500 0.0%  


6593 · Governmental Fees 2,903 19,000 -16,097 15.28%  


Total Miscellaneous Expenses 9,987 31,300 -21,313 31.91%


Office Expense


6410 · Postage 6,369 16,000 -9,631 39.81%  


6430 · Printing Expense 5,481 7,500 -2,019 73.09%
In the 1Q, most printed supplies were purchased for 
the year.


6461 · Office Supplies 2,480 4,100 -1,620 60.5%  


6800 · Subscriptions/Legal Notices 459 1,100 -641 41.7%


6890 · Computers/Software 1,683 3,000 -1,317 56.1%  


6579 · Furniture 0 500 -500 0.0%
Total Office Expense 16,472 32,200 -15,728 51.16%


Operating Supplies  


6300 · Chemicals 11,979 18,500 -6,521 64.75%  


6880 · Tools and Equipment 1,652 5,000 -3,348 33.05%  


6881 · Safety Equipment 1,628 1,200 428 135.67%
Total Operating Supplies 15,260 24,700 -9,440 61.78%


Professional Services
6083 · Laundry Service 1,119 3,000 -1,881 37.31%
6514 · Lab/Testing Fees 5,611 14,000 -8,389 40.08%  


6570 · Consultant Fees 1,170 18,000 -16,830 6.5%  


6610 · Legal 6,483 20,000 -13,517 32.42%  


6630 · Audit/Accounting 22,644 35,500 -12,856 63.79%  


Total Professional Services 37,027 90,500 -53,473 40.91%


Rents & Leases
6820 · Equipment 783 3,300 -2,518 23.71%  


6840 · Building & Warehouse 17,259 29,790 -12,531 57.94% 1Q Bldg. rent paid thru October.


Total Rents & Leases 18,042 33,090 -15,048 54.52%


Transportation & Travel
7120 · Seminars & related travel 0 2,650 -2,650 0.0%
7201 · Vehicle Gas 9,552 23,000 -13,448 41.53%
7300 · Travel Reimbursements 2,719 6,400 -3,681 42.49%


Total Transportation & Travel 12,271 32,050 -19,779 38.29%


 Page 2 of 4







FY 2017-18 
Actual


2017-18 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2017-18 Operating Budget Variances as of December 31, 2017 (50%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


Uniforms
6021.1 · Boots 660 1,500 -840 44.0%
6021.3 · T-shirts 1,694 1,500 194 112.91% In the 1Q, t-shirts were purchased for the year.


6021.4 · Jackets 0 240 -240 0.0%  


Total Uniforms 2,354 3,240 -886 72.64%


Utilities
7320 · Electricity 55,954 95,000 -39,046 58.9%  


7321 · Propane 896 3,000 -2,104 29.88%  


Total Utilities 56,850 98,000 -41,150 58.01%


Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 260,887 533,000 -272,113 48.95%


Total OPERATING EXPENSES 907,565 1,833,300 -925,735 49.5%


FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES


8511.1 · Tank/Facilities Sites 11,635 22,000 -10,365 52.89%   
8511.2 - Leasehold Improvements 0 0 0 0.0%  


8517 · Field/office equipment 500 0 500 100.0%
In FY 2018-19, the District will be moving to a cloud-
based phone server. *


8573 · Vehicles 0 0 0 0.0%
  


Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 12,135 22,000 -9,865 55.16%


Total Expense 919,701 1,855,300 -935,599 49.57%


Net Ordinary Income 443,480 646,793 -203,313 68.57%


Other Income/Expense
Other Expense


TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS


8620.7 · Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 0 278,615 -278,615 0.0%  


8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF 200,000 320,000 -120,000 62.5%  


8620.5 · Tfers to Building Fund 15,000 15,000 0 100.0%
8620.2 · Tfers to In-House Constr 25,000 25,000 0 100.0%


Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS
240,000 638,615 -398,615 37.58%


  


 Page 3 of 4







Water Sales


Base Current CDR


Oct $120,214.89 $79,799.60 $21,865.58


Nov $105,494.33 $44,382.70 $19,278.19


Dec $119,855.42 $51,917.20 $21,799.79


TOTAL $345,564.64 $176,099.50 $62,943.56


July $105,543.52 $62,759.60
August $119,815.28 $71,367.00
Sept $105,351.55 $60,696.35


$330,710.35 $194,822.95


$676,274.99 $370,922.45







1  Table 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District


FY 2017-18 Capital Program Budget Variances as of December 31, 2017 (50%)


FY 17-18
ACTUAL 


(2Q) FY 2017-18


$ Over 
Budget for 


Year
% of 


Budget Comments


REVENUE


Annual Assessment - New Services 11,743 27,000 -15,257 43.5%


Annual Assessment (County) 396,304 710,000 -313,696 55.8% 1st installment 


Prior Year Assessment 5,910 40,000 -34,090 14.8%


Capital Debt Reduction Charge 0 278,615 -278,615 0.0%


Interest 7,014 8,000 -986 87.7%


0 0 0 0.0%  


Transfers to CIRF from Operations 200,000 320,000 -120,000 62.5%


25,000 25,000 0 100.0%


0 1,463,000 -1,463,000 0.0%


0 0 0 0.0%


TOTAL CAPITAL REVENUE 645,971 2,871,615 -2,225,644 22.5%


EXPENSES   


Gen. Obligation Bonds Payments 65,783 64,284 1,499 102.3%


Cap One Revenue Bond 451,160 566,508 -115,348 79.6%


Total Bond Payments 516,943 630,792 -113,849 82.0%


State Loan Payments 73,309 146,438 -73,129 50.1%


Private Placement Loan 117,007 234,014 -117,007 50.0%


Total Debt Payments 707,259 1,011,244 -303,985 69.9% Sum of all debt payments


2017 CIP 764,857 764,857 na
Carryover expenses from FY17 Phase 1 (total 
$732,000)


2018 CIP 0 1,463,000 -1,463,000 0.0% Design Expenses 


In-House Construction Projects 199 25,000 -24,801 0.8%


TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES 1,472,315 2,499,244 -1,026,929 58.9%


1,472,315 1,036,244 436,071


SURPLUS/DEFICIT -826,344  372,371 -1,198,715 -221.9%


Net Capital Funding 245,446 348,077 -102,631 70.5%


=Net Operating Revenues + Assessments + 
Capital Interest - Total Debt Payments


Funds from Reserves


USDA Bond Proceeds


TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES WO  
Projected 2017 CIP Construction Exp


Transfers to CIRF from Operations for 
prior year surplus


Transfers to In-House Constr. from 
Operations







FY 17-18


Actual 2Q


Operating Budget Cash Reserve 337,003       274,995     62,008.00      
corresponds to 
Operations (0100)


Operating Reserve (25% of Operating Exp) 247,475         458,325     (210,850.00)   


corresponds to 
Operating Reserve 
0300), Low


Debt Repayment Reserve (25% of Debt pmt) 52,315        252,811     (200,496.00)   


Included in Capital and 
Debt Policy Reserve 
1100)


Capital Reserve 250,000 250,000     -                


Included in Capital and 
Debt Policy Reserve 
(1100)


Total District Policy 1,087,722 1,236,131 (148,409)      Includes PARS below


TOTAL Reserves 1,928,390 2,594,683 (666,293)        


Reserves Above (below) Policy 902,676 1,415,968 -513,292
Difference between Total 
and Policy Reserves


DISTRICT FUNDS
CIRF (7106-0600) 461,189$       (334,700)      795,889
OPERATIONS (0100) 337,003$       458,325       -121,322
OPERATING RESERVE (0300) 247,475$       274,995       -27,520
CAPITAL AND DEBT POLICY RESERVE 
(1100) 302,315$     502,811       -200,496
IN HOUSE CONSTRUCTION (0500) 62,007$         104,315       -42,308
BUILDING (0200) 10,850$         213,850       -203,000
CAP ONE BOND AND CITIZENS BANK 
LOAN (1200)


233,191$       
802,112       -568,921  Made first of two payments 


FEDERAL LOANS AND BONDS (0400) -$              64,284         -64,284
STATE LOANS (0700, 0900) 73,432$         146,438       -73,006  Made first of two payments 


STATE LOANS RESERVES (0800,1000) -$            146,739       -146,739 Including this in other reserves.


PARS 200,929$     Added to Table


1,928,390$  2,232,430  -304,040


DISTRICT RESERVES AND FUND BALANCES (2Q)
District Policy Reserves


Total Funds Available 


Table 3.  FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (1Q) 17-18 Budget
Difference 


Actual-FY18 Comments







 


County Balances FY 2017-18 and Reserves Above Policy
 


$31,495.21 $0.00 $255,161.07 $195,850.00 $86,956.00 $0.00 $72,683.88 $572,035.18 $ 0.00 $146,740.72 $510,829.00 $801,357.29 $2,641,613.14 $1,405,978.14


NAME


CERBT PARS
(part of Oper Res)


Operations + 
15% Cash 


Policy Reserve


Bldg Fund
(part of Oper Res)


Operating 
Policy 


Reserve (25% 


less Bldg Fund and 


PARS)***


Federal Loan 
(GO Bonds)


In-house 
Construction


Capital 
Improvements


Guernewood 
Project 


Escrow Funds


State Loan 
58340


Capital and Debt 
Policy Reserve


****


Cap One Bonds 
and Citizens 


Bank Loan Debt


Policy 
Reserve: 


(calc. FYE 2017)


$1,235,635 


Fund 76751 76752 76753 76754 76755 76756 76757 76759 76761 76762


Dep't  


7106


0100
7106


0200
7106


0300
7106


0400
7106


0500
7106


0600
7106


0700
7106


0900
7106


1100
7106


1200


FP1-Jul $31,495.21 $0.00 $255,161.07 $195,850.00 $86,956.00 $0.00 $72,683.88 $567,080.17 $0.00 $146,740.72 $510,829.00 $684,350.69 $2,519,651.53 $1,284,016.53


FP2-Aug $31,495.21 $0.00 $255,161.07 $195,850.00 $86,956.00 $0.00 $72,485.12 $392,439.15 $0.00 $146,740.72 $502,315.00 $233,190.69 $1,885,137.75 $649,502.75


FP3-Sept $32,680.36 $0.00 $255,161.07 $195,850.00 $86,956.00 $0.00 $72,485.12 $371,767.49 $0.00 $73,431.71 $302,315.00 $233,190.69 $1,591,157.08 $355,522.08


FP4-Oct $32,680.36 $200,000.00 $352,003.38 $850.00 $86,956.00 $0.00 $60,102.21 $172,213.90 $0.00 $73,431.71 $302,315.00 $233,190.69 $1,281,062.89 $245,427.89


FP5-Nov $32,680.36 $200,929.02 $387,003.38 $10,850.00 $86,956.00 $0.00 $83,224.11 $17,841.65 $0.00 $73,431.71 $302,315.00 $233,190.69 $1,194,812.54 $160,106.56


FP6-Dec $37,200.62 $200,929.02 $337,003.38 $10,850.00 $247,475.00 $0.00 $82,006.97 $461,189.05 $0.00 $73,431.71 $302,315.00 $233,190.69 $1,747,461.80 $712,755.82


FP7-Jan             


FP8-Feb   


FP9-Mar  


FP10-Apr  


FP11-May  


FP12-Jun  


FP 13 
(FINAL)


 


Beginning balances:
(Note:  Warrants requested in FP 12 for last fiscal year are not subtracted from Cash until FP 1 of the next year.  They are instead recorded as "Vendors Payable")


Reserves Above 
Policy 


(PARS + COUNTY - 
GUERNEWOOD PK 


ESCROW)


** Available Funds:  76757 (Formerly State Loan #58330); 76758 and 76759 (State Loan reserve funds)  (These columns are hidden)
*** Starting FY 2017-18, Bldg Fund and PARS considered part of Reserves
**** $200,000 loaned from Cap Policy Reserve (1100) to Capital Improvements (0600) in Sept 2017.


TOTAL at 
COUNTY 


 





		Item V-A - Actual v Budgeted - 2Q 2017-18

		Item V-A.1 - Budget variances as of 12-31-2017 (100%)

		Sheet1

		Water Sales breakdown



		Item V-A.2 - Capital Budget variances for 17-18  (50%)

		Table 2. FY16Q2



		Item V-A.3 - Fund and Loan Balances as of 9-30-2017 (25%)

		Table 3



		Item V-A.4 - County Acctg Funds FY 17-18

		County Acctg Indices FY 99-00








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: February 1, 2018  
 
SUBJECT:  FY 2018-2019 BUDGET ISSUES AND AD HOC BUDGET 
COMMITTEE REPORT 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a report on the District FY 2018-2019 
Budget issues, receive a report from the ad hoc Budget Committee, and provide 
direction to staff.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The FY 2018-2019 Budget process was introduced at the January meeting.  
Staff are still developing the Budget and the ad hoc Budget Committee will 
meet for the first time on February 1, prior to the February Board meeting.   
 
The District’s financial planning has assumed annual 3% increases to the 
base, water usage rates and the Capital Debt Reduction Charge.  If the 
District decides to increase water rates, staff also wishes to review fees and 
charges so that these can be adjusted at the same time (and noticed in the 
same Prop 218 notice).  These fees include hydrant water charges and 
weekend callout fees.   
 
Staff is in the beginning phases of the budget process.  We have looked at 
the current year budget and find nothing that requires a mid-year budget 
adjustment.  We do have some items of note: 
 


 We are spending more on tank repairs than expected. 
 We have received funds this fiscal year from FEMA for expenses 


incurred in the prior fiscal year. 
 We expect to receive reimbursement from the bond funds for prior 


engineering expenses. 
 We expect to pay more toward our CalPERS liability than is in the 


Budget. 
 
Issues/items for the coming year include: 
 


 A relatively small capital project (replacement of the Monte Rio green 
sand filter). 


 A new truck. 







FY 2018-2019 BUDGET ISSUES   2 
February 1, 2018 
 


 


 Guernewood Park Resort improvements.  At this time we don't know 
whether we can serve water to this project without improvements to 
our system and what those improvement might be and how much time 
it may take to complete them.   We should know relatively soon.   


 
 
 


Table 1.  FY 2018-2019 Budget Preparation  
Reviewed/Approved Capital Improvement 
Program 


December 7, 2017 


Introduce Budget Process January 4, 2018 


Budget Committee meetings January - March 
2018 


Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action, 
Including Direction on Water Rates 


March 1, 2018 


Prop 218 Mailing for Water Rate Increase, if 
necessary 


March 19, 2018 


Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action April 5, 2018 


Approve Budget 
 Prop 218 Public Hearing on Rates, if 


necessary


May 3, 2018 


 
 
 
 





		Meeting Date: February 1, 2018 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: February 1, 2018 
  
SUBJECT: GUERNEWOOD PARK RESORT WATER SERVICE REQUEST TO 
THE DISTRICT  
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation from General Manager Steve Mack 
regarding the Guernewood Park Resort request for water service from the District and 
provide direction to staff.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none at this time.  


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Guernewood Park Resort is a proposed hotel/motel with a reported 120 rooms and 
a restaurant which is located next to the Dubrava Condominiums and Hulburt Creek in 
Guernewood Park.   
 
Over the past several months I have been reporting on the progress on an agreement 
with the Resort developer to fund analysis to determine the water supply needs of the 
project.  We have received payment for the modeling analysis and that work is 
underway.   At the time of this writing we have received no information on the progress 
of this work.  If we receive information prior to the meeting, we will share it at the 
meeting as part of this agenda item.   
  
  








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: February 1, 2018 
  
SUBJECT: NEW INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS IN 
CONNECTION WITH THE LOAN TO BE MADE TO THE DISTRICT BY THE UNITED 
STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, RURAL UTILITIES SERVICES, FOR THE 
FINANCING OF CIP 2017, PHASES 2 AND 3 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a report from the General Manager regarding new 
information, disclosure and policy requirements for moving forward with the bond/loan 
obligation with USDA, RUS for construction of Phases 2 and 3 of the 2017 CIP (2018 
CIP).   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 
    
DISCUSSION: 
The District has agreed to move forward with a USDA loan obligation to fund completion 
of Phases 2 and 3 of the 2017 CIP (2018 CIP because it is happening and funded in 
Fiscal Year 2018).  The 2018 CIP includes replacement of approximately 4,600 ft of 
existing main and 58 services on Old River Rd at Morningside east to the eastern 
section of Foothill Drive near where Old River Road intersects with River Road, and 
includes Orchard Rd and Foothill Drive.  The USDA loan obligation will have a total value 
of approximately $1.8 million and will have a 40 year amortization.  The bond will cost 
the District approximately $70,000 per year.   The District has retained the services of 
Kronick, Moskovitz, Tiedemann and Girard as bond counsel.   
 
Bond counsel has informed us that the District has to approve a debt policy and provide 
certain information prior to issuing the bond and must make annual representations 
regarding our debt.  I believe our annual Budget Report typically includes most, if not 
all, of this information and, in the past, our loan documents contained all the required 
information.  We do not have a debt policy.     
 
The required debt policy has the following required elements: 
Government Code 8855, as amended by SB 1029 (Ch. 307, Statutes of 2016), 
mandates that the Governing Board adopt a debt management policy prior to issuing 
any debt, such as general obligation bonds, tax and revenue anticipation notes 
(TRANs), and certificates of participation. The policy must include:  







New Financing Requirements  2  
February 1, 2018 


(I) the purposes for which the debt proceeds may be used;  


(2) the types of debt that may be issued;  


(3) the relationship of the debt to, and integration with, the district's capital 
improvement program or budget, if applicable;  


(4) policy goals related to the district's planning goals and objectives; and  


(5) internal control procedures to ensure that the proceeds of the proposed debt 
issuance will be directed to the intended use. 
Bond counsel has provided an example debt policy that the District can adopt.  Please 
review it.  We suggest the policy go into the District Policies and Procedures at Section 
3520, following the District Reserve Policy which is at 3510.   
Another new requirement comes from SB 450 which requires certain information in 
the approving documents for any new debt (why aren't these two new similar but 
apparently unrelated requirements are not more closely tied together?).  SB 450, 
effective on 1/1/18, requires that certain information must be provided to the public 
at the time an issue is approved. This information is likely best incorporated into the 
staff report.  
The new law requires the governing body (the “Governing Board”) of a local public 
body (includes a county, city, city and county, public district, public authority, public 
corporation, nonprofit corporation or other statutorily constituted public entity which 
is authorized to issue bonds) (a “Local Issuer”) to obtain and disclose, prior to 
authorization of the issuance of bonds with a term of greater than 13 months, good 
faith estimates of the following information in a meeting open to the public: 
1. True interest cost of the bonds: the rate necessary to discount the amounts 
payable on the respective principal and interest payment dates to the purchase price 
received for the new issue of bonds. 
2. Finance charge of the bonds: the sum of all fees and charges paid to third 
parties. 
3. Amount of proceeds received by the public body for sale of the bonds: the 
proceeds of the bonds net of the fees and changes paid to third parties and any 
reserves or capitalized interest paid or funded with proceeds of the bonds. 
4. Total payment amount: the sum total of all debt service payments on the 
bonds calculated to the final maturity of the bonds plus the fees and changes paid to 
third parties not paid with the proceeds of the bonds. 
SB 450 requires that the good faith estimates be obtained from an underwriter, 
financial advisor or private lender.  This means that Local Issuers will want to make 
sure that this information is part of the staff report or agenda item when seeking 
authorization from the Governing Board for the issuance of bonds.  For new money 
general obligation bonds, school districts are already obligated to disclose estimates 
of costs of issuance so, for school districts, items 1, 3, and 4 above are the new 
items to be disclosed.   







New Financing Requirements  3  
February 1, 2018 


Recalling our last financing, I believe all this information was included in the 
presentations prior to acceptance of the new debt.  We'll make certain it's included 
in the approving documentation.    
 







 
 


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


3520 Debt Policy 


Introduction 


The Sweetwater Springs Water District (the “District”) incurs debt, 
administers debt proceeds, manages ongoing disclosure and debt compliance, and 
makes debt service payments, acting with prudence and diligence and with 
attention to prevailing economic conditions. The District believes that debt is an 
equitable means of financing projects and represents an important means of 
meeting fiscal responsibilities.  This debt policy addresses debt 
instruments/securities issued by the District in public or private debt markets and 
does not cover other types of long-term liabilities. 


1. The purposes for which debt proceeds may be used 


The District borrows money primarily to fund long-term capital improvement 
projects, essential equipment and vehicle needs, and to refinance existing 
debt. 


2. The types of debt that may be issued 


There are many different types of financing instruments available to the 
District, including, but not limited to, general obligation bonds, revenue 
bonds, certificates of participation, federal and state government loans, lines 
of credit, refunding bonds, and loans.  The District may consider any 
financing instrument allowed by California law. 


3. The relationship of debt to, and integration with, the District’s Capital 
Improvement Program or budget, if applicable 


Issuance of debt is one of the means of financing in the District’s Capital 
Improvement Program (the “CIP”).  District staff will ensure that accurate 
and complete budgeting of the CIP is prepared as part of the District’s annual 
budget process. 


4. Policy goals related to the District’s planning goals and objectives: 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND 
MAINTAINED TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
In addition, the District reviews and adopts its Capital Improvement Program which 
is updated by District resolution each year, as necessary.  The CIP lists needed 
District projects by year, includes estimated costs, and provides ranking criteria for 
the priority of capital projects.







 


5. The internal control procedures that the District will implement to 
ensure that the proceeds of the proposed debt issuance will be 
directed to the intended use 


The District references the following internal controls to ensure all debt 
proceeds are expended for their intended use: 


1. Review approved use of debt proceeds with District representatives 
who are authorized to initiate contracts and spend funds to ensure 
expenditures are consistent with the terms of the sale. 


2. Educate staff responsible for preparing purchase orders and processing 
payments as to items that can be paid using debt proceeds, as well as 
the proper account coding. 


3. Require the General Manager to review draw-down requests. 


1642412.1  14929-003  2 





		Item V-D - Bond Issuance Requirements

		Item V-D.1 - Draft Debt Policy






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: February 1, 2018   
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in December were 14,146 units (32.5 AF, 
(Monte Rio cycle) and production was 44.6 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales  were 
lower and production this month was higher (31.3 AF and 51.8 AF, respectively).  The water 
lost percentage has dropped somewhat, but it's higher than we want.     Figure 1 shows 
sales, production and % difference for the two systems.     


 
2. Leaks:  In December we had 5 total leaks and spent 28 man-hours on them.   Those are 


fewer leaks and man-hours compared to the prior month and to December one year ago (7 
and 45).  Figure 2 shows service and main leaks separately with a total leaks line as well.     


   
3. Guerneville Rainfall: Rain picked up in January - near short-term average for the month.  


This month's rain does not make up for the December deficit, but we had such a big year 
last year that the reservoirs are in good shape.   Figure 3 shows monthly rainfall compared 
to prior years, the long-term average and the recent average.          


 
4. River Lane Property Sale:  My understanding is that the appraisal is being reviewed, 


which should be completed in February.  Assuming a favorable review, the next steps are 
preparing the conservation easement, recreation covenant, and matching grant agreement. 
Once these documents have been approved by both parties (I don't think we are included in 
this, but we certainly can review the easement and covenant if we so choose), the process 
moves on to Board approvals.     


 
5. Monte Rio Trails Project:  No new news - The project with the proposed parcels have 


been submitted to Open Space; I understand this project is in their review process. 
  
6. 2018 CIP: We expect advertising for this project to begin in January with award of contract 


in April or May. 
 
7. District Urban Water Management Plan: the Plan has been informally approved.  I was 


told of some minor corrections that were needed, given the errata form process and 
submitted the minor corrections - background information on the population estimation 
procedure, description of the groundwater basin and corrections to two tables - to the DWR 
webpage.  Formal approval, in the form of an approval letter, should arrive soon. 


 







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 4 
February 1, 2018 
 


8. In-House Construction Projects: No in-house construction projects were reported for 
January. 


  
9. District Surplus Lands Strategy:  This item was supposed to be on the Administrative 


Agenda for discussion but I have not been able to develop enough information.  I intend to 
have it on the March agenda.   


 
10.  Gantt Chart:   Review of the Budget by the ad hoc Budget Committee is in the Gantt Chart 


for February - first meeting scheduled for February 1.         
 
 


 


Figure 1.  Monte Rio and Guerneville Sales and Production 12 Month 
Moving Averages, SSWD Since March 2010 


0


100


200


300


400


500


600


700


Mar-
10


Sep-
10


Mar-
11


Sep-
11


Mar-
12


Sep-
12


Mar-
13


Sep-
13


Mar-
14


Sep-
14


Mar-
15


Sep-
15


Mar-
16


Sep-
16


Mar-
17


Sep-
17


S
al


es
 a


n
d


 P
ro


d
u


ct
io


n
 (


A
F


)


0%


5%


10%


15%


20%


25%


30%


35%


P
e


rc
en


t 
L


o
s


t


Monte Rio Sales


Guerneville Sales


Gville Prdtn


MR Prdtn


GV % Lost


MR % Lost


`







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 4 
February 1, 2018 
 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline 
Breaks 


Moving Annual Average Since September 2008


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-
08


Mar-
09


Sep-
09


Mar-
10


Sep-
10


Mar-
11


Sep-
11


Mar-
12


Sep-
12


Mar-
13


Sep-
13


Mar-
14


Sep-
14


Mar-
15


Sep-
15


Mar-
16


Sep-
16


Mar-
17


Sep-
17


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks


Service Breaks


Total Leaks


 


Figure 3.  Guerneville Cumulative Monthly Rainfall


0


10


20


30


40


50


60


70


O
cto


be
r


Nov
em


be
r


Dec
em


be
r


Ja
nu


ar
y


Feb
ru


ar
y


M
ar


ch
Apr


il
M


ay
Ju


ne Ju
ly


Aug
us


t


Sep
te


m
be


r


P
re


ci
p


it
at


io
n


 (
in


)


GV 2009


Guerneville Avg


Dryest (1977)


2016


07-17 Avg


2017


2018


-


 
 







 
Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17 Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17 Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 FY18+


Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Budget Preparation
        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
        Update/Review District CIP


        2017 CIP Phase 2&3 Award of 
Contract


        2017 CIP Construction Starts


·        USDA Bond


Urban Water Management Plan Oct-16


Water Rights SCWA Protest
Emergency Response Plan Review
Building Lease


        Lease Renewal August-17
Policies and Procedures


        Other Policy
        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Annual Review


Figure 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 
 





		Meeting Date: February 1, 2018  



